
 

 

Please ask for Amanda Taylor: Telephone 01775 764837  

e-mail: amandataylor@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 

Committee - CABINET 

 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 3 September 2013 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Cabinet: 
 
Councillors: G A Porter (Leader of the Council), C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the 
Council), P S Przyszlak (Deputy Leader), M G Chandler, R Gambba-Jones, H R Johnson, 
C J Lawton and G J Taylor. 
 
No substitutions permitted. Revised quorum 4. 
 

Note:  Cabinet reports may be referred to Council or Scrutiny Panels.  They 
should therefore be kept for future reference during the current 
committee cycle.   
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
Member Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   23 August 2013 
 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on 11 June 2013 (copy enclosed).  
  

(Pages 
1 - 10) 

3.  Members' Interests.  
 
(Members are no longer required to declare personal of prejudicial 
interests but are to declare any new Disclosable Pecuniary Interests that 
are not currently included in their Register of Interests. 
 
Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to 
participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
members may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, in 
relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct.)    
 

 

4.  Questions raised by the public under Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4.  
 

 

5.  To consider any matters which have been subject to call-in.  
 

 

6.  To consider matters arising from the Policy Development and 
Performance Monitoring Panels in accordance with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure or the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules.  
 

 

7.  Localism Act 2011 - To update Members on the work undertaken thus 
far to ensure the Council’s full compliance with the Act and to seek 
agreement that a Community Asset Register is introduced in line with 
the aforementioned legislation.  (Joint report of the Portfolio Holder for 
Localism and Big Society and the Assistant Director Commissioning 
enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 
11 - 34) 

8.  Financial Performance Quarter 1: 2013-14 - To provide information on 
the forecast full year financial position of the Council as at 30 June 
2013.  (Joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and 
Democratic Services and the Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 
35 - 50) 

9.  Any other items which the Leader decides are urgent. -  
 
Note:  (i) No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 

circumstances, which shall be specified in the Minutes, the 
Leader is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.   

 
(ii) Any urgent item of business that is a key decision must be 

dealt with in accordance with paragraphs 15 and 16 of the 
Constitution’s Access to Information Procedure Rules. 

 



- 1 - 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the CABINET held in the Council Chamber, on Tuesday, 11 
June 2013 at 6.30 pm. 
 

 PRESENT  

  
G A Porter (Leader) 

 
C N Worth (Deputy Leader 
of the Council) 
P S Przyszlak (Deputy 
Leader) 
 

M G Chandler 
R Gambba-Jones 
H R Johnson 
 
 

C J Lawton 
G J Taylor 
 

Junior Portfolio Holders:  
 

 A Casson, P E Coupland, S-A Slade and A Woolf. 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Ladey Adey (South 
Lincolnshire Community Voluntary Service) and Tony McGinty (Public Health 
Directorate, LCC) 
 
In Attendance:  Councillor B Alcock (Chairman Performance Monitoring Panel), 
Councillor A Harrison (Chairman Policy Development Panel) and Councillor 
A M Newton (Independent Group Leader), the Chief Executive, the Assistant Director 
Democratic Services, the Assistant Director Finance (S151) and the Member 
Services Officer. 
 
Community Representatives:  Reginald William George Boot (Parish Councils), Harry 
Drury (Chamber of Commerce), Jim Tyner (Lincolnshire Police) and Councillor Roger 
Perkins (South Holland Citizens Advice Bureau) 
 
 

1. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 7 May 2013 were signed by the Leader as a 
correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 
No interests were declared. 
 

3. QUESTIONS RAISED BY THE PUBLIC UNDER CABINET PROCEDURE RULE 
2.4.  
 
No questions were raised under Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4. 
 

4. TO CONSIDER ANY MATTERS WHICH HAVE BEEN SUBJECT TO CALL-IN.  
 
There were no matters subject to call-in. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2.

Page 1



- 2 - 

 

CABINET - 11 June 2013 

 

 

5. FINAL REPORT OF THE VEHICLE LEASING TASK GROUP (RECONVENED)  
 
Consideration was given to the final report of the Vehicle Leasing Task Group 
(reconvened), containing recommendations which had been approved by the Policy 
Development Panel.   
 
The original Task Group had reported to the Cabinet on 14 June 2011 and as part of 
its recommendations within that report, it was proposed that the Task Group be 
reconvened in the autumn of 2011 to review the work carried out in respect of the 
replacement refuse fleet, scheduled for replacement in 2014.  The reconvened Task 
Group had commenced its work on 17 September 2012, and its scope had been as 
follows: 
 
To give consideration to the following areas with a view to identifying areas where 
savings could be made: 
 

• Current arrangements for refuse vehicles – should the Council lease or buy its 
next fleet?; 

• Environmental specifications of the next fleet; 

• Progress on exploring the possibilities of working with other authorities (as agreed 
by Cabinet on 14 June 2011); and 

• The current arrangements for the staff casual/essential car user scheme and 
whether using pool cars would be a more cost effective alternative. 

 
Councillor A Harrison, who had been a member of the Task Group, presented the 
recommendations to the Cabinet.   
 
Members stated that recommendations (c) and (d) were not Cabinet functions, as 
they related to Terms and Conditions of Service, and agreed that the Chief Executive 
should undertake any action on those two points. 
 
DECISION: 
 
a) That the following recommendations of the Task Group be approved: 
 

• That the planned purchase of the Dennis Eagle refuse vehicles using the 
Weekly Collection Support Scheme funding received be supported; and 

 

• That investigations on alternative fuel vehicles not proceed any further as the 
technology was not advanced enough and experts had said that they were not 
viable. 

 
b) That the following recommendations of the Task Group be investigated further by 

the Chief Executive, as they related to Terms and Conditions of Service: 
 

• That as there were clear savings to be made, a review of the essential car 
user scheme be undertaken including: 

 
 

Page 2



- 3 - 

 

CABINET - 11 June 2013 

 

 

 
o The lump sum payment; 
o The pence per mile payment; and 
o The qualifying amount of mileage to become an essential car user. 

 

• That a pool car scheme be investigated which could work in conjunction with 
an essential car user scheme. 

 
(Options:  

• Approve the Task Group’s Final Report and recommendations without 
amendments; 

• Do nothing 
Reasons for Recommendations: 

• The Weekly Collection Support Bid had been successful and would be funding 
the new Refuse Collection Vehicles, there had been no clear indication that 
alternative fuel vehicles had proven technology to progress with further 
investigation.  Looking at alternative options for payments to essential/casual 
car users, for the use of their vehicles, in conjunction with a pool car scheme 
would prove to make significant savings and warrants further investigation.) 

 
6. APPOINTMENT OF PANELS AND WORKING PARTIES  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director Democratic Services 
on the recent recommendations of the Council in respect of the appointment of 
Panels and Working Parties etc.  The Cabinet was invited to determine whether such 
Panels or Working Parties falling under the delegated authority of the Cabinet should 
be re-established and, if so, to determine their terms of reference and composition.  
Full details of the Panels and Working Parties referred to Cabinet by full Council 
together with their existing terms of reference and composition were set out within the 
report. 
 
DECISION: 
 
a) Sustainable Communities Steering Group 

 
That the Sustainable Communities Steering Group be re-established for the 
municipal year without amendment to its terms of reference or composition; and 
substitutions to be permitted where members form part of a political group subject 
to (i) substitutions applying for individual meetings only and (ii) the group leader or 
nominated representative submitting details to the Assistant Director, Democratic 
Services by noon on the day of the meeting, or at least 3 hours before the 
meeting, whichever is the sooner.  (Composition to be Councillors B Alcock, G R 
Aley, F Biggadike, C J T H Brewis, A Casson, R J H Creese, R Gambba-Jones, M 
Howard, H R Johnson, C Lawton, R M Rudkin and D J Wilkinson.) 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



- 4 - 

 

CABINET - 11 June 2013 

 

 

b) Housing Allocations Appeal Panel 
 

That the Housing Allocations Appeal Panel be re-established for the municipal 
year without amendment to its terms of reference or composition; and no 
substitution arrangements be permitted other than those already detailed in the 
composition.  (Composition to be the Housing Strategic Lead Portfolio Holder, the 
Leader of the Opposition and one other councillor selected by the appropriate 
officer (currently the Housing Manager).) 

 
c) Discretionary Housing Payments Review Board 
 

That the Discretionary Housing Payments Review Board be re-established for the 
municipal year without amendment to its terms of reference or composition; and 
no substitution arrangements be permitted other than those already detailed in the 
composition.  (Composition to be the Housing Strategic Lead Portfolio Holder, the 
Leader of the Opposition and one other councillor selected by the appropriate 
officer (currently the Assistant Director Democratic Services).) 

 
d) ICT Member Working Group 
 

That the ICT Member Working Group be re-established for the municipal year 
without amendment to the terms of reference and without amendment to the 
composition; that substitution arrangements apply (including for the Portfolio 
Holder for Internal Services Performance and Business Development) where 
members form part of a political group subject to (i) substitutions applying for 
individual meetings only and (ii) the group leader or nominated representative 
submitting details to the Assistant Director Democratic Services by noon on the 
day of the meeting, or at least 3 hours before the meeting, whichever is the 
sooner.  (Composition to be Councillors G R Aley, M G Chandler, A Puttick, 
Portfolio Holder for Internal Services Performance and Business Development, S 
M Booth, R Perkins and S Wilkinson.) 

 
e) Internal Drainage Board (IDB) Liaison Arrangements Sub-Group 
 

That the IDB Liaison Arrangements Sub-Group not be re-established as last years 
meeting did not take place due to there being no issues for discussion.  The 
Boston and South Holland Flood Risk and Drainage Management Group met bi-
monthly and this was attended by representatives of the drainage boards, so 
regular liaison did take place. 

 
f) Corporate Equalities Working Group 

 
That the Corporate Equalities Working Group not be re-established as there was 
no requirement for the Council to have an Equalities Working group within the 
Public Sector Equality Duty (under review) or in the Equalities Act, 2010.  As a 
council, compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duty had to be demonstrated, 
and this could be done through equalities monitoring, staff profiles, equalities 
objectives, training and working with local action groups. 
 

Page 4



- 5 - 

 

CABINET - 11 June 2013 

 

 

(Other options considered: 

• To approve the recommendations with amendments 

• Do nothing. 
Reason for decision: 

• The Panel and Working Groups recommended for re-appointment had a future 
role to perform in advising the Cabinet or making decisions under delegated 
authority.)  

 
7. QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder for Internal Services 
Performance and Business Development and the Assistant Director Democratic 
Services, which provided members with a report on the Performance of the Council 
and the Priorities set out in the Corporate Plan 2011 – 2015. 
 
Members did not find the current format of the Performance Report useful or user 
friendly, and questioned whether it had to be produced in the way that it was. The 
document needed to be a useful corporate document, to be used to assist both the 
Council and the Public.  It was agreed that the Leader and the Chief Executive meet 
to consider how to produce a document that was not resource intensive and that was 
easier for all users to understand.    
 
DECISION: 
 
a) That the report and appendices be noted; and 
 
b) That the Leader and the Chief Executive meet to consider the format of the 

Performance Report.  
 
(Other options considered: 

• To continue to report at the level provided in Appendix A 

• Do nothing 
Reasons for decision: 

• To provide a flexible platform for the monitoring and management of corporate 
priorities. 

• To ensure that the format of the performance report was user friendly and easy to 
understand). 

 
8. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE QUARTER 4 2012-2013  

 
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Strategic 
Finance and Democratic Services and the Assistant Director Finance (S151) which 
provided information on the draft year end financial position of the Council, as at 31 
March 2013 
 
The covering report indicated a number of recommendations, with some decisions to 
be made by the Cabinet and some to be referred to Council. 
 
 

Page 5



- 6 - 

 

CABINET - 11 June 2013 

 

 

DECISION: 
 
a) That the report and Appendix 1 be noted. 

 
b) That the draft year end position on the 2012-13 revenue budget be noted; 

 
c) That the expenditure which had been drawn down from reserves, in line with 

actual spend in year, be noted; 
 

d) That the draft outturn on Spalding Special Expenses for 2012-13 be noted; 
 

e) That the year end position on the 2012-13 Housing Revenue Account be noted; 
 

f) That the 2012-13 Capital Programme outturn be noted; and  
 

g) That the year end position for the Council’s 2012-13 Treasury outturn be noted. 
 
RECOMMENDED TO FULL COUNCIL: 
 
a) That the following movements to specific reserves be agreed: 
 

• A transfer to reserve of £10,750 for the Holbeach Regeneration project;  

• An amount of £10,000 to be earmarked for a shared South Holland and 
Breckland District Council Environmental Health Civica development project; 

• An amount of £14,806 to be transferred to reserve for the DWP Implementing 
Welfare Reform grant; 

• 50% of underspent Delegated members budget to be transferred to reserve of 
£27,936, for use in the next financial year; 

• The Waste Incentive grant £355,214 received not yet spent, to be transferred 
to reserve; 

• £2,000 for the Energy Advice Officer to be transferred to reserve to extend the 
energy advice work into 2013-14; 

• An amount of £8,600 for Phase Two of the South Holland Centre Feasibility 
Study; 

• A contribution from reserves for £8,320 for Pedals Cycling Group from the 
S106 revenue reserve  

• A contribution to the Planning reserve for £6,500 for Ocella modules as part of 
ongoing planning Service Improvements; 

• The balance of the unspent £84,000 Council Tax Reform grant (£24,174) to be 
transferred to the Council Tax reserve; 

• To transfer £250,000 to the Council Tax reserve; and 

• To transfer £400,000 to the Capital reserve 
 
b) That the transfer of £35,460 to the Spalding Special Reserve be approved; 
 
c) That the financing of the 2012-13 Capital Programme be approved; 
 

Page 6



- 7 - 

 

CABINET - 11 June 2013 

 

 

d) That the Capital Programme for 2013-14 and associated financing be amended to 
reflect the schemes requested to be carried forward from 2012-13; 

 
e) That the Disabled Facilities Grant Budget for 2013/14 be increased by £4,717 to 

reflect the actual grant received 
 
(Other options considered: 

• Not to approve the recommendations detailed in appendix 1 

• To approve the recommendations with amendments 
Reasons for decision: 

• To provide timely information to councillors on the overall finances of the 
Council and to make the best use of resources available.) 

 
9. WRITE OFFS  

 
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Strategic 
Finance and Democratic Services and the Assistant Director Finance (S151) which 
sought approval to write off irrecoverable debts. 
 
Members noted that the appendices were not for publication by virtue of Paragraphs 
1 (Information relating to any individual) and 3 (information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)) in Part 1 of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972.  The 
appendices were therefore attached as agenda item 13, for members to consider in 
more depth if they wished. 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised that she was continuing to seek legal advice 
regarding what information detailed within the Write-Off reports could be published 
and what information should be considered as confidential.  She reported that she 
had been advised that the Data Protection Act did not relate to companies and that 
information relating to them could therefore be potentially placed in the public 
domain.   
 
Members commented that there was an issue with regard to public perception of 
write-offs, and that it should be made clear that the Authority rigorously pursued non 
payers.  In addition, where information was available within the public domain, the 
reason for non payment should be clarified, as there were sometimes genuine 
reasons for the debt occurring. 
 
DECISION: 
 
a) That the following debts be written off: 
 

Council Tax    £ 6,115.75   
Non Domestic Rates   £ 2,236.55 
Sundry Debtors    £12,553.29 
Former Tenant Arrears   £16,022.09 
Housing Benefit Overpayment  £ 5,856.84 
Total     £42,784.52 

Page 7



- 8 - 

 

CABINET - 11 June 2013 

 

 

 
b) That the Authority make it clear that it rigorously pursued non payment of sums 

due; and 
 
c) That where information was available within the public domain, the reason for non 

payment be clarified, as there were sometimes genuine reasons for the debt 
occurring. 

 
(Other options considered: 

• To approve the recommendation with amendments; or 

• Do nothing. 
Reasons for decision: 
All recovery methods available had been considered and where appropriate pursued 
before making the decision to write off). 
 

10. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
DECISION: 
 
To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraphs 1 and 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

11. WRITE OFFS  
 
Consideration was given to the appendices relating to the joint report of the Portfolio 
Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services and the Assistant Director 
Finance (S151) which sought approval to write off irrecoverable debts. 
 
This item had been dealt with earlier in the meeting, under agenda item 10. 
 
Members commented that some of the amounts detailed were sizeable and 
questioned how quickly debts were pursued from the outset.  The Assistant Director 
Finance (S151) advised that he would provide members with information on the 
recovery procedures and provide additional detail on the sundry debtor case.  
 
DECISION: 
 
a) That the Assistant Director Finance (S151) provide a report detailing how some of 

the larger amounts detailed within the write-off report had arisen; and 
 
b) That the Assistant Director Finance (S151) provide members with details of the 

recovery procedure. 
 
(Other options considered: 

• Do nothing.  
 
 

Page 8



- 9 - 

 

CABINET - 11 June 2013 

 

 

Reasons for decision: 

• To provide a more detailed level of information for Portfolio Holders to 
consider before any decision be made to write off.)  

 
(The meeting ended at 7.12 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
These minutes are published on Friday 14 June 2013.  In accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed above will, unless otherwise stated, 
come into force and may then be implemented on Monday 24 June 2013  (i.e. after 
the expiry of 5 working days from the date of publication of these minutes), unless 
during that period a notice which is signed by at least one member of the Council and 
complies with the requirements of Rules 15(b), (c) and (d) of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules is served on the Assistant Director Democratic Services 
requesting that the decision be called-in and the Assistant Director Democratic 
Services approves the request for call-in.  Where a decision is called-in it will firstly 
be considered by the Performance Monitoring Panel on a date to be fixed. 
 
Any FINAL DECISIONS and any URGENT DECISIONS take effect immediately. 
 
Any RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL detailed above will be submitted for 
consideration to the meeting of the full Council on Wednesday 19 June 2013. 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society and the Assistant 
   Director Commissioning  
 
To:    Cabinet – 3 September 2013  
 
(Author:  Christopher Dean, National Management Trainee) 
 
Subject: Localism Act 2011 
 
Purpose: To update Members on the work undertaken thus far to ensure the 
   Council’s full compliance with the Act and to seek agreement that 
   a Community Asset Register is introduced in line with the  
   aforementioned legislation 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Localism Act was introduced in November 2011.  The aim of the act was 

to devolve more decision making powers from central government to local 
communities and councils. The act covers a wide range of issues related to 
local public services, with a particularly focus on the general power of 
competence, community rights, neighborhood planning and housing.   

 
1.2 The key measures of the act were grouped under four main headings: -    
 

a) new freedoms and flexibilities for local government 
b) new rights and powers for communities and individuals 
c) reform to make the planning system more democratic and more 

effective 
d) reform to ensure decisions about housing are taken locally 

 
1.3 Further information on the Localism Act 2011 can be found on the 

Department of Communities and Local government website. 

Recommendation to Cabinet:  
 
a) That the content of the report be noted, specifically the activity already 

undertaken to ensure compliance with the Localism Act 2011, and the 
establishment of a Community Assets Register as outlined in body of the 
report and in compliance with the Localism Act 2011; and 

 
Recommendation to full Council:  
 
b) That a policy of no compensation payments be agreed, with regards to 

loss of income due to the moratorium on sale imposed by registration on 
the Community Assets Register (i.e. compensation for delay or failure to 
sell as a result of registration NOT loss of property value through the sale). 

 

Agenda Item 7.

Page 11



1.4 The Act includes a number of important measures and further detail on 
these is provided at Appendix B.  In Addition, an update is given on the 
actions already undertaken by the Council to meet these requirements.  
The Council has made a number of changes as required by the act. 

 
1.5 The Community Right to Bid came into force in September 2012. The 

Community Right to Bid allows communities to nominate buildings and 
land that they consider to be of value to the community, to be included on 
a local authority maintained list (Community Asset Register). If any of the 
assets on the register are put up for sale, a temporary moratorium gives 
the community window of opportunity to express an interest in purchasing 
the asset, and another window of opportunity to create a bid. 

 
1.6 South Holland District Council is developing a Community Asset Register 

as required by the act.   
 
2.0 COMMUNITY ASSET REGISTER  
 
2.1 This report recommends that SHDC introduce a Community Asset Register to 

comply with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 and the Community 
Right to Bid process.  The proposed process for developing and maintaining 
the Register is provided at Appendix A. 

 
2.2 A Community Assets Register is a facility for residents of South Holland to 

express an interest in a building or piece of land because of its ‘Community 
Value’.  Once a building or piece of land is registered the owner must observe 
certain restrictions on the sale process – designed to allow community interest 
groups to create and submit a suitable bid. 

  
2.3 The purpose of the Register is to protect property and spaces valuable to local 

communities from being lost through sale to developers without a chance for 
the community to produce an offer to challenge the sale. Community value is 
described as ‘a non-ancillary use that benefits the community’, and private 
property can be nominated. 

 
2.4 SHDC currently holds no Community Assets Register nor has a process for 

managing an expression of interest. The process need not be a complicated 
mechanism, requiring only a spreadsheet of decisions (approved, rejected and 
pending) to be updated regularly and published on the website.  There are 
only limited examples of working schemes available from elsewhere in the 
country. However, the Act is already in force and managing the register is a 
statutory requirement. Therefore, it is imperative to establish a register and 
protocol for processing applications. 

 

Page 12



2.5 The definitions of a Community Asset are clearly explained (non-residential 
property with a non-ancillary use of benefit to the community) but more 
nuanced to assess. As elected representatives, council members have the 
mandate to make such political or disputed decisions on behalf of the 
community. The assessment of a potential community asset is one of local 
knowledge as well as political authority; therefore the decision could rest with 
the member of the council whose ward contains the asset in question. 

 
2.6 Members will have access to advice from officers on matters of legislation, but 

as the council has now been granted the general power of confidence, there is 
little beyond the stated definition of a “community asset” to transgress. Ward 
Members will also be privy to all communications between the council and 
both nominees and owners during the registration process. 

 
2.7 A process for appeals against the initial decision is included in the legislation, 

and the decision for such will need to be made by the first tier tribunal. 
 
2.8 A process for compensation for property owners affected by the registered 

status of their building/land is included in the process. This compensation 
does not refer to any reduction in value of the building, nor any losses 
resulting from a sale under the market value. It specifically refers to any costs 
or losses resulting from the delay in sale that the legislation creates.  

 
2.9 The Council will need to decide upon a compensation policy as the details are 

not included in the Act. Central government has committed to paying any 
compensation in excess of £20,000 over the course of a financial year, but this 
is up for review in 2015. As the act is a new piece of legislation we have no 
information on what a compensation policy will cost.  This report therefore 
recommends that a policy of no compensation payments with regards to loss 
of income due to the moratorium on sale imposed by registration on the 
Community Assets Register is put in place. 

 
3.0 OPTIONS 
 
3.1 Create a Community Asset Register adjudicated and administered by officers. 
 
3.2 Create a Community Asset Register adjudicated by members and 

administered by officers. 
 
3.3 Agree a policy for the payment of compensation to the owners of assets 

included on the register.  
 
3.4 Agree a policy of not providing compensation payments. 
 
4.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 By having the Community Asset Register adjudicated and administered by 

officers standard practices and procedures would be developed and followed 
but members’ local knowledge would likely not be utilised on a case-by-case 
basis. 

Page 13



4.2 By adjudicating for the Community Asset Register, members would be 
applying their local knowledge to their work for the council and exercising the 
authority of their mandate (with the assistance of officers as required) - 
therefore promoting local democracy, which in turn further promotes the 
Localism Agenda. 

 
4.3 By having a policy of compensation payment the Council exposes itself to 

financial risk. Without data over a sufficiently long period it is impossible to 
accurately predict the cost of a compensation policy. Central government has 
committed to paying any compensation in excess of £20,000 over the course 
of a financial year, which limits the range of costs, but this is up for review in 
2015. 

 
4.4 By having a policy of not paying compensation, the Council avoids exposure 

to the risk of up to £20,000 per year until 2015 – and an unknown level of 
financial risk in following years. 

 
5.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 
 
5.1 The benefit of the Community Assets Register will be that residents concerned 

about developers interested in important community buildings and spaces will 
have a means of preserving them. It will also benefit members to be seen in 
action by the residents of their wards, raising local political awareness. 

 
5.2 As the registration process is initiated by the public and governs property 

sales it is impossible to define periods when it will or will not be required for 
reference but the maintenance of the register will be ongoing. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
6.1.1 No carbon footprint or environmental implications are expected from 

establishing a Community Assets Register. 
 
6.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
6.2.1 The Community Assets Register will entail legal restrictions on the sale of 

property and in the event that these restrictions are found to have been 
breached the sale will be legally void. The Council will be expected to uphold 
this but not to actively search for sales in breach of restrictions. If a legal case 
is put forward the register may be requested as evidence, therefore older 
versions of the register will need detailed archiving. 

 
6.2.2 Statutory requirement to have a Register in place. 
 
6.3 Contracts 
 
6.3.1 No contracts implications are expected from establishing a Community Assets 

Register. 

Page 14



6.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
6.4.1 No crime or disorder implications are expected establishing a Community 

Assets Register. 
 
6.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
6.5.1 All decisions made regarding the Community Assets Register will reference 

the Council’s Equality, Diversity and Human Rights policy. There is an appeal 
process for owners but not for applicants, but these are not designed to 
handle claims of breaching council policy or the law – any such claims are for 
the relevant legal body. 

 
6.6 Financial  
 
6.6.1 The Community Asset Register will be managed using current resources and 

will therefore be cost neutral. 
 
6.7 Risk Management  
 
6.7.1 Any building or open space that requires inclusion on the risk register will be 

included alongside registration as a community asset or a failed application on 
a case by case basis. 

 
6.8 Staffing 
 
6.8.1 The Community Asset Register will be managed using current resources and 

will therefore require no new staff. 
  
6.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
6.9.1 Regarding the Community Assets Register, ward members will be consulted 

over the nominations in their wards and required to respond to the nominating 
party and nominated property owner (when the property is not a council 
asset). Asset management will be consulted when the nominated property is a 
council asset. In cases where the owner objects to a decision to list their 
property the Localism Portfolio holder may consult Community Development, 
Legal, Planning or an other department relevant to the case.  

  
7.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
7.1 All South Holland wards are affected. 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:- None 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 15



Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post: Christopher Dean, National Management Trainee 
Telephone Number: 01775 761161 
Email: cdean@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision: Yes 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A – Community Assets Register Process Proposal 
Appendix B – Implementation Plan 
Appendix C – Example Nomination Form 
 

Page 16



APPENDIX A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        No 

 

 

 

    Yes 

 

        Upheld  

  

 

 

    Denied 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Yes 

 

 

 

    No 

     

        No 

 

 

    Yes 

 

 

 

 

         = decision needed 

Expression 

of interest / 

nomination 

Received by Customer 

Services, pass to ward 

member/officer 

Meets criteria? 

Clear 

explanation of 

why 

nomination 

was 

unsuccessful 

Owner appeals? 

Unsuccessful 

Bids 

Register 

Add to 

Community 

Asset Register 

Update 

register/ 

Publish 

register 

Notification of intent to 

sell received 

Publish notice 

Community 

interest bids 

Pass on to owner 

Sale meets 

criteria? 

SALE 

LEGALLY 

VOID 

Update register/ Publish 

register 

Include in 

GIS 

(planning) 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 11 

Localism Act 2011 – Implementation Plan       APPENDIX B 

 
Key Area Summary Lead 

Officer 
General Update RAG 

status / 
due date 

New freedoms and flexibility for local government 
 
General power of 
competence 

Local authorities can only do what the law says they can.  
The Act has turned this assumption upside down. Instead 
of being able to act only where the law says they can, 
local authorities will be freed to do anything - provided 
they do not break other laws. It gives local authorities the 
legal capacity to do anything that an individual can do that 
is not specifically prohibited; they will not, for example, be 
able to impose new taxes, as an individual has no power 
to tax. 

Mike Horn 
(BDC) / 
Vicky 
Thomson 

Save to say that the 
General Power of 
Competence 
provisions have now 
been enacted into Law, 
there isn’t anything 
else that per se, needs 
to be done. BDC and 
SHDC now has a 
General Power of 
Competence 

18/2/12 & 
4/4/12 

Abolition of the 
Standards Board 

Through the Localism Act, the Government has abolished 
the Standards Board regime. Instead, local authorities will 
draw up their own codes, and it will become a criminal 
offence for councillors to deliberately withhold or 
misrepresent a financial interest. 

Vicky 
Thomson 

Final arrangements 
approved SHDC – 
27.6.12 & BDC – 
5.7.12. 
Implemented. 

1/7/12 

Clarifying the rules 
on predetermination  

 

The Localism Act makes it clear that it is proper for 
councillors to play an active part in local discussions, and 
that they should not be liable to legal challenge as a 
result. 

Vicky 
Thomson  
& 
 Paul 
Jackson 

Briefing included 
agenda at Planning 
meetings. 
Training provided to 
members.  

15/2/12 

P
age 19



Page 2 of 11 

Key Area Summary Lead 
Officer 

General Update RAG 
status / 
due date 

Greater local control 
over business rates  

 

The Localism Act gives councils more freedom to offer 
business rate discounts - to help attract firms, investment 
and jobs. Whilst councils would need to meet the cost of 
any discount from local resources, they may decide that 
the immediate cost of the discount is outweighed by the 
long-term benefit of attracting growth and jobs to their 
area. 

Mark Finch Evaluating the impact 
on the consultation 
published July 2012. 
Using support from LG 
Futures. Financial 
impact to be 
incorporated into 
Medium Term Plan 

Amber 
 
Jan/Feb 
2013 
 

Directly elected 
mayors  

Using powers in the Act, the Government intends to 
trigger a referendum in the largest cities outside London, 
inviting local people to decide whether they want to have 
an elected mayor. People in other areas of the country will 
continue to able to call for their own referendum on 
whether to have an elected mayor. 

N/A 

London The Localism Act passes greater powers over housing 
and regeneration to local democratically elected 
representatives in London. 

N/A 

Empowering cities 
and other local 
areas  

 

The Act also enables Ministers to transfer local public 
functions from central government and remote quangos to 
local authorities, combined authorities and economic 
prosperity boards.  

N/A 

Other freedoms for 
councils  

 

The Localism Act free councils to go about their business 
in a way that suits their local circumstances.  
includes allowing councils, where they wish, to move 
away from an executive form of governance to a 
committee system. The Act also removes previous 
constraints around the timing of when councils can 
change their governance models.  

N/A 

New rights and powers for communities 
 
Community right to 
challenge  

 

The Localism Act gives these groups, parish councils and 
local authority employees the right to express an interest 
in taking over the running of a local authority service. The 

Riana 
Rudland / 
Emily 

All public facing 
information is now 
available on the South 

Green 

P
age 20



Page 3 of 11 

Key Area Summary Lead 
Officer 

General Update RAG 
status / 
due date 

local authority must consider and respond to this 
challenge; and where it accepts it, run a procurement 
exercise for the service in which the challenging 
organisation can bid. 

Holmes Holland website to 
explain to community 
groups what the Act 
means and how to 
make an approach.  
Draft material is 
currently being 
approved at Breckland 
with a view to upload 
on the website in the 
same manner.  The 
procedure to process 
applications is still 
unclear at this point, 
however, research is 
under way with other 
Authorities.  

Community right to 
bid (assets of 
community value)  

 

The Localism Act requires local authorities to maintain a 
list of assets of community value which have been 
nominated by the local community. When listed assets 
come up for sale or change of ownership, the Act then 
gives community groups the time to develop a bid and 
raise the money to bid to buy the asset when it comes on 
the open market. 

Rob Walker / 
Capita 

No update at this 
stage.  Lead 
responsibility recently 
confirmed and work to 
be commence 
imminently. 

 

Right to approve or 
veto excessive 
council tax rises 

The Localism Act gives local communities the power to 
decide. The Secretary of State will determine a limit for 
council tax increases which has to be approved by the 
House of Commons. If an authority proposes to raise 
taxes above this limit they will have to hold a referendum 
to get approval for this from local voters who will be asked 
to approve or to veto the rise. This means that local 
authorities will need to convince local voters, rather than 
central government of the case for excessive rises in 
council taxes.  

Mark Finch Both Medium Term 
Plans and Budgets 
were mindful of this 
when Council Tax 
levels were set. The 
same will apply for this 
year’s programmes 

Green 
 
Jan/Feb 
2013 

P
age 21



Page 4 of 11 

Key Area Summary Lead 
Officer 

General Update RAG 
status / 
due date 

Transparency over 
senior council 
officials' pay  

 

Councillors will need to vote on and publish a statement of 
their policies on pay. This will include the salaries of 
senior officials working in local authorities, but also the 
lowest paid employees. 

Natalie King Revised pay policy 
statement for 2013/14 in 
preparation.   

Green 

P
age 22



Page 5 of 11 

Key Area Summary Lead 
Officer 

General Update RAG 
status / 
due date 

Getting rid of fines 
and charges for 
rubbish collection  

 

The Climate Change Act 2008 gave councils the ability to 
charge families for overfilling their bin and to introduce 
extra tariffs for taking away household waste. In the 
Localism Act, this ability has been removed. Separately, 
the Government is also providing extra support to councils 
who wish to offer their residents weekly bin collections. 

Dale 
Robinson 

Noted – Previous 
powers not used or 
considered as a viable 
option 

Green 

Reform to make the planning system clearer, more democratic and more effective 
 
Abolition of regional 
strategies  

 

The Secretary of State wrote to local authorities in 2010 to 
tell them that the Government intended to abolish regional 
strategies. 

Paul 
Jackson / 
Dave 
Spencer 

Breckland – East of 
England RSS 
abolished January 
2013.  South Holland – 
Revocation of East 
Midlands RSS will 
follow, already having 
been the subject of 
SEA.  Both Councils’ 
Local Plan processes 
have taken the 
implications fully on 
board. 

Green 
 
Jan 2013 
and 
ongoing. 

Duty to cooperate  

 
The duty requires local authorities and other public bodies 
to work together on planning issues. 

Paul 
Jackson / 
Dave 
Spencer 

Duty to Co-operate 
firmly embedded in 
Local Plan processes 
at Breckland and 
South Holland.  
Legislatively conjoined 
working arrangements 
with Boston BC and 
Lincolnshire CC at 
South Holland aimed 
at meeting Local Plan 
tests of soundness. 

Green 
 
Jan 2013 
and 
ongoing. 

P
age 23



Page 6 of 11 

Key Area Summary Lead 
Officer 

General Update RAG 
status / 
due date 

Neighbourhood 
planning  

 

Neighbourhood planning will allow communities, both 
residents, employees and business, to come together 
through a local parish council or neighbourhood forum 
and say where they think new houses, businesses and 
shops should go – and what they should look like.  

These plans can be very simple and concise, or go 
into considerable detail where people want. Local 
communities will be able to use neighbourhood 
planning to grant full or outline planning permission 
in areas where they most want to see new homes 
and businesses, making it easier and quicker for 
development to go ahead.  
Provided a neighbourhood development plan or order is in 
line with national planning policy, with the strategic vision 
for the wider area set by the local authority, and with other 
legal requirements, local people will be able to vote on it in 
a referendum. If the plan is approved by a majority of 
those who vote, then the local authority will bring it into 
force.  

 

Paul 
Jackson / 
Dave 
Spencer 

Legislative processes 
embedded at both 
Breckland and South 
Holland.  Both Council 
received frontrunners 
funding aimed at 
engaging the 
communities of 
Attleborough 
(Breckland) and 
Holbeach (South 
Holland).  This work is 
ongoing. 

Green 
 
Jan 2013 
and 
ongoing. 

Community right to 
build  

 

The Act gives groups of local people the power to deliver 
the development that their local community want. They 
may wish to build new homes, businesses, shops, 
playgrounds or meeting halls. A community organisation, 
formed by members of the local community, will be able 
to bring forward development proposals which, providing 
they meet  
minimum criteria and can demonstrate local support 
through a referendum, will be able to go ahead without 
requiring a separate traditional planning application. 

Paul 
Jackson / 
Dave 
Spencer 

Both Breckland and 
South Holland 
Councils strategically 
aware of community 
right to build.  To date 
only Great Ellingham 
Parish Council have 
signalled an intention 
to pursue rights under 
the provisions of this 
part of the Localism 
Act.  Regular meetings 
and support being 

Green 
 
Jan 2013 
and 
ongoing. 

P
age 24



Page 7 of 11 

Key Area Summary Lead 
Officer 

General Update RAG 
status / 
due date 

given to Great 
Ellingham. 

Requirement 
to consult 
communities 
before 
submitting 
certain 
planning 
applications  

 

To further strengthen the role of local communities in 
planning, the Act introduces a new requirement for 
developers to consult local communities before submitting 
planning applications for certain developments. 

Paul 
Jackson / 
Dave 
Spencer 

The pre-consultation 
thresholds limit this 
requirement to certain 
types of development, 
notably large housing 
schemes of 200 plus 
units and 
developments 
exceeding 10,000 sqm. 
Developers will need to 
ensure that their 
consultation process is 
robust to avoid 
challenges. Although 
most large-scale 
developers have 
traditionally engaged in 
pre-application 
discussion, the move 
to make this 
compulsory is likely to 
involve additional time 
and cost at the pre- 
application stage in 
some instances, as 
well as a need to 
ensure careful 
compliance with 
requirements. Both 
Councils will have an 
important role to play 

Green 
 
Jan 2013 
and 
ongoing 

P
age 25



Page 8 of 11 

Key Area Summary Lead 
Officer 

General Update RAG 
status / 
due date 

in making sure that 
adequate and effective 
consultation takes 
place. 

Strengthening 
enforcement rules  

 

The Localism Act will strengthen planning authorities’ 
powers to tackle abuses of the planning system, such as 
deliberately concealing new developments. 

Paul 
Jackson / 
Dave 
Spencer 

Rules have been 
strengthened, notably 
in relation to the power 
to take action against 
unauthorised works 
where they have been 
deliberately concealed.  
Both Councils 
cognisant with the 
relevant legislative 
changes. 

Green 
 
Jan 3013 
and 
ongoing. 

Reforming the 
community 
infrastructure levy  

 

Local authorities are allowed to require developers to pay 
a levy when they build new houses, businesses or shops. 
The money raised must go to support new infrastructure - 
such as roads and schools. This is called the community 
infrastructure levy. The Localism Act will change the levy 
to make it more flexible. It allows some of the money 
raised to be spent on things other than infrastructure. It 
will give local authorities greater freedom in setting the 

rate that developers should pay. And crucially, the Act 
gives the Government the power to require that some of 
the money raised from the levy go directly to the 
neighbourhoods where development takes place. 

Paul 
Jackson / 
Dave 
Spencer 

Both Councils are 
moving forwards with 
key viability work 
aimed at introducing 
CIL at an appropriate 
level, within an 
appropriate timescale, 
cognisant of the need  
to ensure compliance 
with the legislative 
framework. 

Green 
 
Jan 2013 
and 
ongoing 

Reform the way 
local plans are 
made  

 

The Localism Act will limit the discretion of planning 
inspectors to insert their own wording into local plans. It 
also ensures that rather than focussing on reporting 
progress in making plans to central government, 
authorities focus on reporting progress to local 
communities. 

Paul 
Jackson / 
Dave 
Spencer 

Local Plan work at 
both authorities is 
proceeding in line with 
the relevant legislative 
framework in order to 
meet the required tests 

Green 
 
Jan 2013 
and 
ongoing. 

P
age 26



Page 9 of 11 

Key Area Summary Lead 
Officer 

General Update RAG 
status / 
due date 

of soundness. 
Nationally 
significant 
infrastructure 
projects  

 

The Localism Act abolishes the Infrastructure Planning 
Commission and restores its responsibility for taking 
decisions to Government ministers. It also ensures the 
national policy statements, which will be used to guide 
decisions by ministers, can be voted on by Parliament. 

Paul 
Jackson / 
Dave 
Spencer 

Both Councils acutely 
aware of the legislative 
changes. 

Green 
 
Jan 2013 
and 
ongoing. 

Reform to ensure that decisions about housing are taken locally 
 
Social housing 
allocations reform  

 

The Act gives local authorities greater freedom to set 
their own policies about who should qualify to go on the 
waiting list for social housing in their area. This means 
that they are now able, if they wish, to prevent people 
who have no need of social housing from joining the 
waiting list. Authorities are still obliged to ensure that 
social homes go to the most vulnerable in society and 
those who need it most.  

 

Duncan Hall (BDC).Report with 
recommendations due 
to go to Cabinet in 
September 2012, and 
subsequently to 
Council 
 
(SHDC) Consultation 
completed, revised 
Allocations Policy due 
to Cabinet October 
2012  Subject to 
member consultation, 
some further detail and 
minor amendments will 
be made to the Policy 
Proposal.   

 Green 

Social housing 
tenure reform  

 

The Localism Act allows for more flexible arrangements for 
people entering social housing in the future. Social 
landlords will now be able to grant tenancies for a fixed 
length of time. The minimum length of tenancy will be two 
years in exceptional circumstances with five years or more 
being the norm. There is no upper limit on the length of 
tenancy. Councils can still offer lifetime tenancies if they 
wish. 

Duncan Hall BDC - Tenancy 
Strategy endorsed by 
Council May 2012. 
 
(SHDC) Revised 
tenancy strategy due 
to Cabinet October 

Green 

P
age 27



Page 10 of 11 

Key Area Summary Lead 
Officer 

General Update RAG 
status / 
due date 

2012 
Reform of 
homelessness 
legislation 

The Localism Act lets local authorities meet their 
homelessness duty by providing good quality private rented 
homes. 

Duncan Hall Required secondary 
legislation in 
consultation phase – 
due to be passed 
September 2012. Need 
to agree approach of 
both Councils once 
legislation is clarified. 
It is anticipated that 
where it is necessary 
to utilise PRS homes –
schemes involving 
registered providers 
will be favoured over 
direct contractual 
relationships with 
individual private 
landlords. 

Amber 

Reform of council 
housing finance  

 

The Localism Act changes the way social housing is funded 
to pass more power to a local level. Now, instead of having 
to send the money raised by rent to central government 
and wait to see each year what share they get allocated 
back, councils will be able to keep the rent and use it locally 
to maintain their social homes. 

Mark Finch Modelling and 
borrowing completed in 
readiness for 2012/13 

Green 

National home 
swap scheme 

The Localism Act paves the way for a national home swap 
scheme. This will enable people who would like to swap 
their social home to access details of all other tenants who 
may be a suitable match. 

Duncan Hall SHDC is subscribing to 
national Homeswap 
Direct scheme 

Green 

Reform of social 
housing regulation  

 

The Act provides social tenants with stronger tools to hold 
their landlords to account. Landlords will be expected to 
support tenant panels - or similar bodies - in order to give 
tenants the opportunity to carefully examine the services 

Duncan Hall SHDC has a tenant 
panel of long-standing. 

 Green 

P
age 28



Page 11 of 11 

Key Area Summary Lead 
Officer 

General Update RAG 
status / 
due date 

being offered. The Act also abolishes the Tenant Services 
Authority and transfers its remaining functions to the 
Homes and Communities Agency.  
The Act also changes the way that complaints about social 
landlords are handled. . In the future, a single watchdog 
(the Independent Housing Ombudsman) specialising in 
complaints about social housing will ensure greater 
consistency across the sector. 

Abolition of Home 
Information Packs  

The Localism Act has repealed once and for all the original 
laws that called for Home Information Packs. 

Duncan Hall Noted Green 

 

P
age 29



P
age 30

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I.    Your details: 
a.  Name: 
 
b.    Address: 
  
 
       Postcode: 
 
c.    Contact number: 
 
d.    Email address: 
 
e.    Who are you representing? (e.g. Parish Council/Community Group): 

III.  Brief description of the nominated land/building and proposed 
 boundaries (for example, age of asset or building, previous and 
 purpose, type of construction – timber frame, prefabricated concrete etc.) 

II.    Asset name: 

Page 31



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IV. Asset address: 
 
 Postcode: 

V. The name of the current occupiers of the land: 

VI. The name and last known address of all those holding a freehold or 

 leasehold estate in the land: 

VII. Nature of current use (please choose one category): 
  
 � Health centre � Heritage � School � Toilet � Green Space  
 � Sports and Leisure � Swimming pool/lido � Shop � Library � Theatre 
 � Community Centre � Youth Centre � Childrens’ Centre � Town Hall 
 � Day Care Centre � Residential Care Home � Hotel � Mixed Use 
 
 Other: _________________________________________ 
 

VIII. Current status of the building/land (please choose the most 
 appropriate):  
 
 � In Community Use � In Public Ownership � Under Consultation  
 � Temporary Use � Empty Building � Empty Home � Disused Land 
 � Surplus Property � Available for sale/rent/transfer � Under threat of 
 closure � Under transfer 
 
 Other: _________________________________________ 

Page 32



 
 
 
 
 
 

IX. Please explain briefly why you think it is an asset of community 

 value: 

X. Does this building/land have a deadline for proposals? � YES � NO 
 (if YES please give details) 

XI. A photograph of the asset or any boundary drawings would be ideal 
 to support the registration, so please attach to this form. 

Signature: 

Print Name: 

Date: 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services 

and the Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
 
To:    Cabinet – 3 September 2013 
 
(Author:  Mark Finch, Assistant Director Finance (s151)) 
 
Subject: Financial Performance Quarter 1 2013-14 
 
Purpose: To provide information on the forecast full year financial position 

of the Council as at 30 June 2013   
 
 

Recommendations: 
 
a) That the report and Appendix 1 be noted; 
 
b) That the quarter 1 position be noted; 
 
c) That the New Homes Bonus at quarter 1, to be transferred to reserves, be noted; 
 
d) That the Quarter 1 position on Spalding Special Expenses for 2013-14 be noted; 
 
e) That the Quarter 1 position on the 2013-14 and forecast outturn for the Housing 

Revenue Account be noted; 
 
f) That the Quarter 1 position for the Council’s 2013-14 Council Tax and Business 

Rates be noted; 
 
g) That the Quarter 1 position on the Capital Programme and forecast outturn be 

noted ; and 
 
h) That the Quarter 1 position for the Council’s 2013-14 and the forecast Treasury 

outturn be noted.  
 
Recommendations to Council: 
 
a) That the virement for disabled facilities grants for £53,000 (rounded) be approved. 
 

 
1.0  BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This report provides information on the forecast full year financial performance 

for four separate areas. 
 

• Revenue Budget incorporating Spalding Special Expenses and the 
Housing Revenue Account 

 

Agenda Item 8.

Page 35



o Forecast revenue outturn for 2013-14 
o Unallocated reserve levels 
 

• Council Tax and Business Rates  
o In year collection Council Tax 
o In year collection Business Rates 
 

• Capital 
o Forecast actuals against budget 
o Sources of Financing 
 

• Treasury 
o Security of investments 
o Liquidity levels 
o Yield levels 
o Borrowing 
 

1.2 Where actions or decisions are required, these are detailed at the end of each 
section with options. 
 

2.0 OPTIONS 
 

2.1 To note the report and to approve the recommendations detailed in appendix 
1. 

 
2.2 To note the report and not approve the recommendations detailed in appendix 

1 
 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

3.1 To provide timely information to Members on the overall finances of the 
Council and to make the best use of resources available. 

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 

 
4.1 To ensure that Members are updated regularly on the overall Council financial 

position and to act on any budget amendments required to reflect the latest 
forecasts of spend and income. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 None 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 None 
 

Page 36



5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 None 
 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 None 
 
5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 None 
 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 The report is of a financial nature and financial details are included within the 

appendix. 
 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 Risks are highlighted within the appendix. 
 
5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 None 
  
5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
5.9.1 None 

 
6.0  WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 Budget implications affect all wards.  
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers: - None  
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post: Mark Finch – Assistant Director Finance 
Telephone Number: 01775 761161 
Email: mark.finch@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision:  No 
 
Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix 1 - Financial Report for the quarter ending 30 June 2013  
 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



    

APPENDIX 1 
 

South Holland District Council  

Financial Report for the quarter ending 30 June 2013  
 
This report has four sections 
 

• Section 1 – Revenue budget 

• Section 2 – Council Tax and Business Rates 

• Section 3 – Capital budget 

• Section 4 – Treasury update 
 

Section 1 - Revenue Budget 
 

General Fund 
 
The table below details the full year outturn against the approved budget for 2013-14.  
This is calculated by taking expenditure and income up to 30 June 2013 and 
budgeted income and expenditure for the remainder of the year.  Significant 
variances to the approved budget are detailed in Table 2. 
 
 
 
Table 1 –Revenue Outturn   
 

 
 
Forecast outturn against budget = 99.19% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



    

Table 2 – Significant Variances 2013-14 Forecast outturn 
 

 
 
 
Salaries 
The budgeted vacancy factor for 2013-14 is 2% and progress is being monitored.  
The majority of vacant posts are currently being used to fund Agency, interim or  
casual staff or held vacant because of the recruitment moratorium.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



    

Table 3 – Other Budget Items 
 

Other budget items are shown in the table below: 
 

 
 
Please note 

 
*New Homes Bonus to be transferred to the Council Tax reserve as per the 
2013/14 budget setting report, as this does not currently support the base budget.  
The additional £25k New Homes Bonus relates to additional distribution notified 
after Council had approved the budget. 
 
** includes the reversal of depreciation charges for Council owned assets which 
are included within the directorate structure and the corporate provision for the 
repayment of debt. 
 

Actions/Decisions 
 
To note the forecast outturn position on the 2013-14 revenue budget.  
 
Recommendations 
 
There are no recommendations as at Quarter 1 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



    

Table 4 – Virement Decisions Required 
 
The following budget amendments are required to reflect the latest forecasts of 
spend and income to ensure reported budget performance remains updated.   
 

 
 
Actions/Decisions 
 
To approve the virement for disabled facilities grants as shown in table 4. This has a 
net effect on the budget and was approved as a roll over scheme in Quarter 4. 
 
Recommendations 
 
To approve the virement for disabled facilities grants  
 
Table 5 – General Fund Reserve Balances 
 
The table below shows the General Fund reserve balance as at 30 June. The 
balances within the table are funds that can be used to finance both revenue and 
capital expenditure, for example, one-off invest to save projects and to meet 
expenditure arising from unexpected events. 
 

General Fund Reserves Reserve 
Amount 
Available  
£’000 

Affordable Housing Reserve 118 

Capital Reserve 562 

Climate Change Reserve 44 

Council Tax Reserve* 2,293 

Emergency Planning Reserve 10 

Insurance Reserve 257 

Organisational Development Reserve 1,094 

Planning Reserve 313 

Replacement and Refurbishment Reserve 358 

Community Cohesion 69 

Section 106 earmarked reserve 11 

Sub total  5,129 

Cumulative Working Balance 2,034 

Total General Fund reserves 7,163 

 
 

• Includes the transfer of New Homes Bonus Grant of £215,190* as at Quarter 
1, to the Council Tax reserve 

Page 42



    

Actions/Decisions 
 

No decisions are required at Quarter 1. The transfer of the New Homes Bonus grant 
was approved at 2013/14 budget setting time, approved at Full Council 27th February 
2013. 
 
Recommendations 
There are no recommendations at Quarter 1 
 
Spalding Special Expenses 
Expenditure relating to Spalding Special expenses forms part of the Council’s 
General Fund budget and is included in Table 1 above. The approved budget for 
2013-14 is £209,830 and is funded by Spalding Taxpayers, the Band D charge for 
the financial year being £23.28. The forecast outturn for 2013-14 shows in the table 
below 
 
Table 6 – Forecast Revenue Outturn   

 

Page 43



    

The Council maintains an earmarked reserve relating to Spalding Special Expenses. 
The unspent budget at the year end is transferred into the reserve which can then 
used to meet expenditure arising from unexpected events and to cover any future 
deficit which may arise. For 2012-13, £35,460 was transferred into reserve at year 
end, which is reflected in the 2013/14 brought forward balance of £93,740 (rounded). 
 

The current unallocated reserve balance is £81,640, after earmarking funds for Crime 
Prevention and  Christmas Decorations and setting aside a contingency equal to 5% 
of 2013-14 budgeted expenditure.  Any variations from the budget or use of the 
Spalding Special Expenses Reserve recommended from the Spalding Town Forum 
would need to be approved by Cabinet/Council.  
 
Actions/Decisions 
 
To note the forecast outturn on Spalding Special Expenses for 2013-14 
 
Recommendations 
There are no recommendations as at Quarter 1 
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
 

The HRA is on target to deliver the budget.  The table below details the full year 
forecast outturn against the approved budget for 2013-14   
 
Table 7 –Forecast Revenue Outturn 
 

 
 
 
 
The HRA Capital Programme is reported in Table 9 within the Approved Capital 
Programme. 
 

Page 44



    

Table 8 – Unallocated HRA Revenue Reserves 
 
The table below shows the unallocated reserve balance as at 1st April 2013. The 
balances within the table are funds that can be used to finance both revenue and 
capital expenditure, for example, one- off invest to save projects and to meet 
expenditure arising from unexpected events. 
 

Housing Revenue Account Reserves Unallocated 
Amount 
Available  

£’000  

Insurance Reserve 200 

Sub total  200 

Cumulative Working Balance  1,955 

Forecast Outturn 3,123 

Adjustments between accounting basis 
and funding basis under statute 135 

Balance on the HRA  5,213 

Total HRA unallocated reserves 5,413  
 
 
Actions/Decisions 
 
To note the forecast outturn position on the 2013-14 Housing Revenue Account. 
 
Recommendations 
 
There are no recommendations as at Quarter 1 
 

Section 2- Council Tax and Business Rates 
 
Council Tax 
 
2013/14 In-Year Collection 
 
The anticipated impact on in-year collection rate due to the introduction of Council 
Tax Support and the Council Tax Technical changes introduced in April 2013 is 
showing in the collection rates compared to previous years.   
At the end of June 2012, the collection rate was 30.55%, against a collectable debit 
of £35.4m.   
At the end of June 2013, as shown in Table 3 below, the collection rate was 30.22%. 
 
It is too early in the year yet to form a view on the overall impacts.  Recovery is 
progressing and over the course of the coming months the picture will become 
clearer. 
 

Page 45



    

June 2013 in-year collection position 
 

 June 2013 

% Collected 30.22% 

 
 
Business Rates 
 
Changes introduced in 2013/14 

The business rates retention scheme was introduced on 1st April 2013 and the 

previous system of pooling the business rates has ceased.  The new system 

provides a direct link between business rates growth and the amount of money 

councils have to spend on local people and local services. Councils will be able to 

keep a proportion of the business rates revenue as well as growth on the revenue 

that is generated in their area. This will provide a strong financial incentive for 

councils to promote economic growth.  

 
2013/14 In-Year Collection 
 
At the end of June 2013, as shown in Table 3 below, the collection rate was 33.20% 
against a collectable debit of £24.8m. 
 
Recovery timescales are on track and pro-active telephone debt chasing has been 
introduced.   
 
 
June 2013 in-year collection position 

 

  Apr May Jun 

% Collected 12.12% 24.59% 33.20% 

 
A forecast of retained business rates at Quarter 1 is not yet available, with South 
Holland District Council being in a Lincolnshire Pool arrangement with Lincolnshire 
County Council and North Kesteven District Council. The Lead Authority will be 
working on a year end position and SHDC share later in the year.  
 
Actions/Decisions required 
That the position at Quarter 1 for the Council’s 2013-14 Council Tax and Business 
Rates to be noted. 
 
Recommendations 
 
There are no recommendations as at Quarter 1 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



    

Section 3 – Capital Budget  
This section reports on: 

• Outturn against 2013-14 approved capital programme 

• Risks, issues and key messages 
 
Table 9 – Outturn against 2013-14 approved capital programme 
 

 
 
 
This is to be resourced by: 
 

Source of Financing Latest 
Approved 
£’000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
£’000 

Use of Capital Receipts 313 313 

Capital Grants and Contributions 1,474 1,474 

Direct Revenue Funding/Use of Reserves 8,055 8,055 

Total 9,842    9,842 

 
The original budget was approved at Council on 27 February 2013. Further 
amendments have subsequently been made to the revised budget (Latest 
Approved), reflecting previous year incomplete schemes brought forward and 
additional DFG grant of £4,717. 
 
Spend against budget  4.8% 
Forecast Outturn   £9,842,000 
 
Explanation of variances 

• None at present 
 

Page 47



    

The following schemes were approved to be carried forward from 2012-13 to 2013-
14 in the Quarter 4 draft outturn report which went to Cabinet 11th June 2013 
 
Table 10-Schemes rolled forward into 2013-14 Capital Programme 

Scheme to be carried forward from 2012-13 into 2013-14 Budget 2013-14 
£’000 

General Fund  
Emergency Lighting 15 

Light Fitting Adapters 2 

Fire Alarm System 20 

Integrated Asset Management System 20 

Leisure Contractor Pool and Hall Works 93 

Fulney Field Skate Park 11 

Disabled Facilities Grants 48 

Fuel Poverty 5 

Holland Road Car Park 12 

Environmental Health Restructure 20 

PAYE.net/MOTO replacement 5 

GF Total 251 

HRA  
Council House – Central Heating Upgrades 46 

Council House – External Wall Insulation 206 

Council House – Housing Site Enhancements 123 

Asbestos Works 111 

Community Centre and Office Extension 8 

Sewerage Treatment Works 105 

PAYE.net/MOTO replacement 1 

Housing Allocations and Lettings software system 18 

HRA Total 618 

Grand Total 869 

 

Funding of schemes to be carried forward from 2012-13 
into 2013-14 

£’000 

Capital Receipts 57 

Capital Grants and Contributions 82 

Direct Revenue Funding/Use of Reserves 730 

Total 869 

 
In addition to the schemes carried forward from 2012/13, the Council received an 
additional grant of £4,717 towards funding disabled facilities grants, as reported in 
Quarter 4 to Cabinet on June 11th 2013. This has been reflected in the latest 
approved Capital Programme budget shown in Table 9 above. 
 
Actions/Decisions 
 
To note the 2013-14 Capital Programme forecast outturn 
 
Recommendations 
 
There are no recommendations as at Quarter  

Page 48



    

Section 4 – Treasury 
 
This section reports on: 

• Security, Liquidity and Yield of Investment portfolio 

• Current Debt Position 

• Risks, issues and key messages 
 

Security 
 

The Council has not adopted any formal benchmarks for the management of risk as 
Officers believe that decisions on counterparties and maximum investment levels are 
adequate to monitor the current and trend positions and amend the operational 
strategy to manage risk as conditions change. 
 
The Council uses the creditworthiness service provided by Sector which provides a 
maximum duration for investments depending on the colour rating calculated for each 
financial institution. All investments held by the Council are within the recommended 
maximum duration. 
 
 
 

Counterparty Exposure

CCLA Money Market Fund
Lloyds TSB Bank
Clydesdale Bank
Nationwide BS
National Westminster PLC
Barclays Bank PLC

 
 
 
The balance held with Clydesdale Bank stands at £11,547. This amount is being 
retained to keep the account open in case their counter party rating improves, 
thereby allowing for future investments to be made. Clydesdale Bank does not show 
on the above pie chart due to being such a minimal amount. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Because of the limited 
number of counterparties 
available, deposits are 
mainly spread amongst 

four institutions. 
 

To achieve further 
diversification an account 
with the CCLA Money 

Market Fund is utilised for 
instant access funds. 

Page 49



    

Liquidity 
 
Cash 
The Council’s average level of deposits during the first quarter of the financial year 
was £19.5m. As at 30 June the Council had £3.9m instant access cash available to 
meet cash flow requirements.  The table below shows the amounts held in relation to 
the remaining period to maturity.  

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

£

C
a

ll

<
 1

M
o

n
th

1
-3

M
o

n
th

s

3
-6

M
o

n
th

s

6
-9

M
o

n
th

s

9
-1

2

M
o

n
th

s

>
 1

2

M
o

n
th

s
Maturity Period

Maturity Structure of Investments

 
 
Yield 
 
Budgeted Interest 2013-14   £62,500 
Actual Interest as at Q1 2013-14  £36,154 
Forecast interest 2013-14 (split HRA/GF) £100,000     
 
*Interest is apportioned between the General Fund and HRA. The forecast at Quarter 
1 is estimated at General Fund £75k and Housing Revenue Account £25k. 
 
Target yield (Average 3 month LIBID) 0.56% 
Actual Yield as at Q1 2013-14    0.74% 
 
External Borrowing 
 
The Council borrowed £67.456m from the PWLB on 28th March 2012 to meet its 
obligations under the Housing Revenue Finance Reforms. This was borrowed for a 
period of 50 years on a maturity basis at a rate of 3.48%. No borrowing has been 
undertaken during  quarter 1. 
 
Actions/Decisions required 
 
That the forecast position for the Council’s 2013-14 Treasury outturn be noted. 
 
Recommendations 
There are no recommendations as at Quarter 1 

The percentage 
maturity 
structure of 

investments is: 
 

Call = 19% 

< 1 mth = 30% 

< 3 mths = 10% 

< 6 mths = 19% 

< 9 mths = 5% 

< 12 mths = 17% 

> 12 mths = Nil 

Page 50


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	7. Localism Act 2011
	Appendix A - Process Proposal
	Appendix B - Implementaion Plan
	Appendix C - Nomination form sh

	8. Financial Performance Quarter 1: 2013-14
	Financial Performance Q1 Appendix


